Collective Bargaining Agreement

between

SEIU 775

and

Arcadia Medical Resort of Parkside

Effective August 2, 2022 to July 1, 2025

CONTENTS

PREAMBLE	3
ARTICLE 1: INTENT & PURPOSE	3
ARTICLE 2: RECOGNITION	4
ARTICLE 3: PROBATIONARY PERIOD	4
ARTICLE 4: NO DISCRIMINATION	5
ARTICLE 5: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	6
ARTICLe 6: UNION SECURITY	9
ARTICLE 7: VISITATION	11
ARTICLE 8: DUES CHECKOFF	12
ARTICLE 9: UNION ADVOCATES	14
ARTICLE 10: BULLETIN BOARD	15
ARTICLE 11: ORIENTATION	16
ARTICLE 12: LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	16
ARTICLE 13: DEFINITIONS	17
ARTICLE 14: SENIORITY	18
ARTICLE 15: JoB POSTING AND PROMOTIONS	19
ARTICLE 16: JOB ASSIGNMENTS & TEMPORARY TRANSFERS	22
ARTICLE 17: HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	22
ARTICLE 18: HEALTH & SAFETY	25
ARTICLE 19: DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE	26
ARTICLE 20: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	29
ARTICLE 21: ARBITRATION	32
ARTICLE 22: WAGES	34
ARTICLE 23: PAID TIME OFF (PTO)	43
ARTICLE 24: WASHINGTON PAID SICK LEAVE	45
ARTICLE 25: HOLIDAYS	46
ARTICLE 26: INSURANCE	46
ARTICLE 27: 401(k) PLAN	50
ARTICLE 28: LOW CENSUS	51
ARTICLE 29: TEMPORARY REDUCTIONS AND LAYOFFS	52
ARTICLE 30: LEAVES OF ABSENCE	55
ARTICLE 31: BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	57
ARTICLE 32: SEVERABILITY AND SAVINGS CLAUSE	58

ARTICLE 33: SUCCESSORSHIP	59
ARTICLE 34: SCOPE & APPLICATION	59
ARTICLE 35: NO STRIKE/NO LOCKOUT	60
ARTICLE 36: EFFECTIVE DATES AND DURATION	61

PREAMBLE

This Collective Bargaining Agreement (hereafter "Agreement") is made and entered into by and between Prest Op LLC d/b/a Arcadia Medical Resort of Parkside, 308 West Emma Street, Union Gap, WA 98903 (hereafter "Employer") and SEIU 775 (hereafter "Union"), collectively referred to herein as the "Parties."

ARTICLE 1: INTENT & PURPOSE

Section 1.1 It is the mutual intent and purpose of the parties to establish an entire agreement between the Employer and Union concerning rates of pay, hours of work, and such other terms and conditions of employment as are expressly covered by the provisions in this Agreement.

Section 1.2 It is the desire, purpose, and intent of the Employer and Union to establish a practical and sound business and economic relationship and orderly, peaceful, harmonious, respectful, and cooperative relations between the Employer, its employees, and the Union; to foster an atmosphere of trust, respect, and civility between the Employer, its employees, and the Union; to encourage an open dialogue with each other regarding issues relevant to the employees' work environment; to promote conditions of employment that contribute to the safety of employees and the protection of the Employer's property; to promote the efficiency, profitability, growth, and competitiveness of the Employer's operation and the opportunity for steady employment by continually improving the quality of the Employer's operations to exceed the ever-increasing expectations of the residents, patients, or their families; and to achieve uninterrupted operations and the highest levels of efficiency, productivity, and employee performance consistent with safety, health, and best efforts. The Employer and Union agree that they will individually endorse, support, and collectively cooperate with one another in the pursuit of these purposes and objectives.

Section 1.3 The Parties agree that when an employee's work duties bring him/her into contact with any residents, patients, or their families, the employee will be cooperative and do their utmost to present the best possible positive image of the Employer. Employees,

supervisors, and managers shall treat each other (and all residents, patients, families, and other visitors and vendors) with dignity and respect.

ARTICLE 2: RECOGNITION

Section 2.1 The Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative for purposes of collective bargaining with respect to rates of pay, hours of work, and other terms and conditions of employment for employees employed by the Employer at its facility located at 308 West Emma Street, Union Gap, WA 98903 in the following job classifications: all regular full-time, part-time, and on-call cooks, dietary aides, housekeepers, laundry aides, licensed practical nurses (LPN), medical records assistants, certified nursing assistants (CNA), lead certified nursing assistants, hospitality aides, registered nurses (RN), and restorative aides; and excluding all other employees including all dietitians, physical therapists, occupational therapists, speech/language pathologists, receptionists, all administrative and office clerical employees, doctors, other professional employees, guards and supervisors as defined in the National Labor Relations Act.

Section 2.2 Whenever the word "employee" is used in this Agreement, it shall mean those employees in the bargaining unit covered by this Agreement as set forth in Section 1 above.

ARTICLE 3: PROBATIONARY PERIOD

Section 3.1 All newly hired employees who are covered by this Agreement, whether or not previously employed by the Employer, shall be deemed probationary employees and shall be subject to a probationary period for their first ninety (90) calendar days of employment commencing with their first day of work. The Employer in its sole discretion may extend the initial probationary period for up to an additional ninety (90) days, and the Employer will provide a written explanation of the reason(s) for any such extension to the employee and Union. The Employer will not routinely extend the probationary period of newly hired employees as a standard practice. Any days lost from work during the probationary period because of illness, accident, or any other reason shall not be considered in computing the ninety (90) calendar days probationary period.

Section 3.2 Probationary employees are not entitled to any benefits under any of the provisions of this Agreement unless specifically provided for in this Agreement.

Section 3.3 Probationary employees shall not accrue seniority during the probationary period. However, after the successful completion of the probationary period, an employee's seniority shall commence from the date first worked after hire.

Section 3.4 Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Agreement, the Employer may discipline and/or discharge any probationary employee in its sole and absolute discretion at any time during their probationary period, and no action of the Employer with respect to any probationary employees shall be subject to the grievance and arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 4: NO DISCRIMINATION

Section 4.1 There shall be no discrimination by the Employer or the Union of any kind against or in favor of any employee on account of their race, religion, sex, color, national origin, age, disability, medical condition, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, marital status, genetic information or predisposition, military service, veteran status, pregnancy, child birth and related medical conditions, or any other classification protected by federal, state, or local laws or ordinances. All employees must be able to perform all of the essential functions of their job(s), with or without reasonable accommodation.

Section 4.2 Complaints of discrimination or harassment reported to the Employer will be treated as confidentially as possible, provided that such confidentiality does not impede the Employer's ability to conduct a thorough investigation. After the Employer has competed its investigation, the Employer will meet with the employee who made the complaint to discuss the results of the investigation, while respecting the confidentiality of other employees, residents, patients, visitors, vendors, independent contractors, or other persons doing business with the Employer.

Section 4.3 If any employee(s) should file any charge, action, claim, or lawsuit against the

Employer alleging any type of discrimination (including harassment) prohibited by any federal, state, or local law, regulation, or ordinance, no grievances or demands for arbitration under this Agreement may be filed or maintained by the Union or any such employee(s) based on the Employer's actions that are the subject of the discrimination charge, action, claim, or lawsuit, or alleging that the Employer's actions that are the subject of the subject of the discrimination charge, action charge, action, claim, or lawsuit, or alleging that the Employer's actions that are the subject of the discrimination charge, action, claim, or lawsuit also violate this Article.

ARTICLE 5: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Section 5.1 Except as expressly and specifically limited or modified by the provisions of this Agreement, all rights, powers, and authority possessed by the Employer prior to the signing of this Agreement are reserved and retained by the Employer and remain exclusively within the rights, powers, and authority of management. Such rights of management include, but are not limited to, the sole, exclusive, unilateral right, power, and authority to plan, direct, and control all operations; to open, close, or change units; to determine the nature, type, methods, and standards of resident care and services to be provided and performed; to hire, promote, assign, transfer, or lay-off employees; to demote, discipline, suspend, or discharge employees for just cause; to increase or decrease the size of the work force; to determine the work schedules, locations, and standards; to determine the number, size, and staffing of shift(s); to determine the starting and ending times of shift(s), breaks, and meal periods; to determine the hours of work per day or per week and the number of straight-time or overtime hours to be worked; to determine the standards of quality and quantity of work; to assign work duties on straight- time and overtime work in accordance with its determination of the needs of the respective jobs and operations; to determine the materials, equipment, machinery and supplies to be used; to introduce new methods or techniques; to determine the number of employees assigned to any job classification or any work assignments; to determine all procedures used; to determine the layout of the facility and the size and character of its inventory; to determine work rules, policies, procedures, handbooks, regulations, and practices for the purpose of achieving an orderly, efficient, and safe operation and for imposing discipline for behavior that fails to conform to the Employer's

expectations, and for rewarding behavior that benefits the Employer's objectives and/or for instilling or maintaining positive morale; to determine the need for and type of technological changes to be implemented; to determine the location of the facilities; to determine, change, or improve the physical condition of its facilities; to move, contract out, subcontract, close, sell, lease, or liquidate part or all of its operations; to lay off or terminate its employees in connection with said moving, closing, contracting out, subcontracting, selling, leasing, or liquidating; to determine, modify, change, add to or delete job classification(s) and the content and qualifications for job classification(s); to determine all qualifications for all jobs; and to determine any and all other matters for the economical and efficient operation of the Employer's business. The word "determine" as used in this Article refers to and includes such actions by the Employer as establishing, fixing, implementing, enforcing, changing, modifying, altering, and/or abolishing, in whole or in part, any and all rights, powers, functions, interest, authority and prerogatives reserved and retained by the Employer as set forth above, or as otherwise reserved and retained by the Employer pursuant to the provisions of this Article.

Section 5.2 The rights, powers, and authority of management specifically mentioned in this Agreement are not intended as limitations, and do not list or limit all such rights, powers, and authority reserved and retained by the Employer. Rather, except to the extent expressly and specifically limited or modified by a specific term(s) of this Agreement, the rights, powers, and authority listed above, together with all other rights, powers, and authority of the Employer possessed by the Employer prior to the signing of this Agreement, but not specifically set forth in this Agreement, are reserved and retained by the Employer, remain vested exclusively in the Employer, and the Employer may unilaterally exercise such rights without bargaining of any kind whatsoever.

Section 5.3 It is expressly understood that the Employer has the sole, exclusive, unrestricted, unilateral right to establish, change, maintain, and enforce rules, regulations, policies, procedures, handbooks, and practices to assure the orderly, safe, and/or efficient operation of the Employer; to impose discipline for behavior that fails to conform to the Employer's

expectations, as defined solely by the Employer; to reward Employees for behavior that, in the sole opinion of the Employer, has benefited the business, and/or to improve morale, so long as such rules, regulations, policies, and practices do not conflict with a specific provision(s) of this Agreement. Nothing in this Section shall be interpreted as requiring the Employer to post or distribute verbal or written orders, instructions, directions, practices, procedures, or explanations that are part of the normal, routine managerial functions involving day-to-day operational matters. The Employer will notify employees of any changes to work rules or policies that could result in their discipline or termination by posting or distributing (including electronic posting or distribution) the changes to such work rules or policies as soon as practical.

Section 5.4 The Employer has the right to subcontract any bargaining unit work provided that such does not result in the layoff of any bargaining unit employees. The Employer also has the right to subcontract any bargaining unit work that does result in the layoff of bargaining unit employees provided that the subcontractor agrees to be bound by and comply with the terms of this Agreement. While the Employer at its option may elect to bargain over the terms of employment applicable to employees of a subcontractor, the Employer shall have no responsibility for the subcontractor complying with the terms of this or any successor Agreement and the Union agrees to hold the Employer harmless from any claims brought against the Employer because of any actions of the subcontractor. The Employer will notify the affected employees and Union of its decision to subcontract work at least fifteen (15) days prior to the work being subcontracted, unless the Employer needs to subcontract the work sooner or immediately in order to meet its business needs, in which case it will provide as much advance notice as is practicable under the circumstances. Upon request of the Union, the parties will engage in effects bargaining regarding any subcontracted work.

Section 5.5 Nothing in this Agreement shall restrict in any way the Employer's right to have supervisors, managers, and other non-bargaining unit employees (including RNs) perform work normally performed by bargaining unit employees on a temporary intermittent basis

to fill in for bargaining unit employees who are absent from work or to meet a specific patient or resident care need or requirement.

Section 5.6 The Employer's failure to exercise any right hereby reserved to it, or its exercise of any right in any particular way, or its failure to exercise its full right of management or its exclusive discretion on any matter, shall not constitute a waiver by the Employer of any such right or preclude the Employer from exercising the same right to its fullest extent at a later date and/or in some other way not in conflict with the specific, express terms of this Agreement, nor shall it constitute a precedent or be binding on the Employer in any respect, including any grievance or arbitration. Except to the extent expressly abridged by a specific provision of this Agreement, the above-recited, expressed and/or implied management rights are exclusively the rights of management.

Section 5.7 The Employer's right of management shall not be amended, limited, or abridged by any claimed custom, past practice, or unwritten informal agreement, or by any claim that the Employer has condoned or tolerated any practice or any conduct, unless otherwise specifically enumerated in some specific, express term of this Agreement. Except to the extent expressly abridged by a specific provision of this Agreement, the above-recited, expressed and/or implied management rights are exclusively the rights of management.

Section 5.8 This Management Rights Article shall survive the expiration of this Agreement and shall remain in full force and effect during any period of time in which the Parties are continuing to negotiate for a renewal agreement.

ARTICLE 6: UNION SECURITY

Section 6.1 All employees covered by this Agreement shall, as a condition of continued employment, either become members of the Union and pay to the Union the periodic monthly dues uniformly required of all Union members, or pay to the Union a monthly service fee equal to the periodic monthly dues uniformly required of Union members. The Union shall certify to the Employer the amount that constitutes periodic monthly dues or said service fees.

All employees who at the time of the signing of this Agreement were not members of the Union and all employees who are hereafter employed shall either become members of the Union and pay to the Union the periodic monthly dues uniformly required of all Union members, or pay to the Union a monthly service fee equal to the periodic monthly dues uniformly required of Union members after thirty-one (31) calendar days following the beginning of their employment. Dues check-off authorizations and membership application cards shall be available at hire and shall be mailed to the Union on or before the twentieth (20th) day after hire, and the first deductions of dues or service fees shall be made from the first paycheck after the thirty-first (31st) day of employment.

Section 6.2 For the purposes of this Article, an employee shall be considered in good standing if the employee tenders periodic dues equal to that uniformly required by the Union as a condition of membership, or pays the Union a monthly service fee equal to the periodic monthly dues uniformly required of Union members.

Section 6.3 The Union shall make available to all employees membership in the Union on the same terms and conditions generally available to other employees and shall not discriminate in any manner as to membership. Membership in the Union is not compulsory, and is a matter separate and distinct from an employee's obligation to share equally in cost of administering and negotiating this Agreement. All employees have the right to join, not join, maintain, or drop their membership in the Union as they see fit, but must, in all cases, comply with Sections 1 and 2 by tendering monthly dues or monthly fair share service fees as appropriate. The Union acknowledges that it is required under the Agreement to represent all employees in the collective bargaining unit without regard to whether or not the employee is a member of the Union.

Section 6.4 An employee who has failed to become or maintain membership in good standing as required by this Article shall, within thirty (30) calendar days following the Employer's receipt of a written demand from the Union requesting their discharge, be discharged if, during such period, the required dues and initiation fees have not been

tendered.

Section 6.5 The Union agrees that it will indemnify and hold the Employer harmless from and against any and all claims, losses, demands, damages, suits, penalties, costs, expenses, attorneys' fees, or liabilities of any type whatsoever that may arise out of, or by reason of, any action taken by the Employer in complying with any aspect of this Article, including, but not limited to, the Employer's termination of any employee pursuant to the Union's request.

ARTICLE 7: VISITATION

Section 7.1 The Union will designate in writing to the Employer the names of two (2) Union officials or representatives who will be primarily responsible for this bargaining unit. The Union may change the identity of these representatives, but the Employer will only recognize these individuals so designated.

Section 7.2 In the event a designated Union representative desires to visit the Employer's facility, the Union Representative shall first request permission from the Administrator. Any visitation request shall be made by the designated Union representative at least two (2) business days in advance and shall include the proposed date and time of the visit, the nature or reasons for the visit, and the names of any employees he/she may wish to meet or speak with during the visit, if applicable. All such visitation requests must be approved by the Employer and such requests will not be unreasonably denied. When a visit is approved, the Union representative will enter the Employer's facility through the main reception entrance, notify the receptionist, and wait in the reception area for the Administrator or another designated Employer representative to meet the Union representative. The Employer will designate a specific location(s) in the facility for the Union representative to use while they are on site, which generally will be the employee breakroom, but the Employer may designate another location depending on circumstances. If the Administrator or another designated Employer representative is not available to meet the Union representative within a reasonable time after they arrive at the facility, the Union Representative may go to the location(s) in the facility designated for their use during that visit. Visitation shall be limited to non-patient/resident care areas of the facility and shall not interfere with any employees in the performance of their job duties. The Employer may limit access to certain areas of the facility in its sole discretion. At all times while on the Employer's property or premises, the Union representative will: (1) conduct themselves in a civil manner; (2) comply with all rules, policies, and procedures of the Employer; and (3) follow the instructions and directions of the Employer. If any Union representative fails to comply with any of the requirements in this Section, the Employer may require them to leave the Employer's premises and property immediately.

Section 7.3 If the designated Union representative wishes to speak or meet with an employee (who has been previously identified in Section 2 above), the Employer may release the employee from duty in the Employer's sole discretion. The Employer will provide a place where such a meeting may be held in private. The Employer will not pay the employee for any time spent away from their job to participate in such discussions. Only one (1) employee may be so released from work at a time, and no employee will be permitted to be absent from their work area for such purposes for more than twenty (20) minutes.

ARTICLE 8: DUES CHECKOFF

Section 8.1 Upon receipt of a valid dues deduction authorization form from an employee, the Employer shall deduct from the wages due said employee each pay period regular Union dues as required by this Article. The Union's current dues deduction authorization form is attached as Exhibit A to this Agreement. The Union may revise its dues deduction authorization form at any time, provided that the Union promptly provides the Employer with the revised dues deduction authorization form and such revised form will become part of Exhibit A to the Parties' then-current collective bargaining agreement.

Section 8.2 The Employer shall be relieved from making any checkoff deductions from employees who: (1) are terminated from employment; (2) transfer to a non-bargaining unit position; (3) are laid off from work; (4) are on an unpaid leave of absence; or (5) revoke their checkoff authorization in accordance with its terms or under applicable law.

Section 8.3 Dues shall be deducted from employees' wages each pay period and the Employer shall remit such dues to the Union monthly by the tenth (10th) day of the month for dues deducted during the pay periods the previous month. The Employer will remit dues to the Union either electronically or by check together with a list of all bargaining unit employees, including those employees from whom dues have been deducted and remitted, including their full name, employee identification number, social security number, home address, telephone number, e-mail address (if provided to the Employer), job classification, date of hire, wage rate, and for the pay periods for which dues are being remitted the pay period start date, pay period end date, their hours worked in each pay period, and their gross pay. The Employer will provide this list in a secure electronic format agreed upon by the Employer and Union.

Section 8.4 Upon receipt of a voluntary political action fund contribution for the Union's Committee on Political Education (COPE) individually authorized by an employee, the Employer shall deduct from the wages due said employee each pay period such political action fund contributions and remit them to the Union electronically or via check separate from dues in the same manner as it remits Union dues in Section 3 above. The Union's current COPE deduction authorization form is attached as Exhibit A to this Agreement.

The Union may revise its COPE deduction authorization form at any time, provided that the Union promptly provides the Employer with the revised COPE deduction authorization form and such revised form will become part of Exhibit A to the Parties' then-current collective bargaining agreement. The Employer may remit voluntary contributions to the Union either electronically or by check together with a list of all employees from whom voluntary contributions have been deducted and remitted, including their full name, employee identification number, and their hours worked and gross pay for the pay periods for which the dues are being remitted. The Employer will provide this list in a secure electronic format agreed upon by the Employer and Union.

Section 8.5 It is specifically agreed that the Employer assumes no obligation, financial or

otherwise, arising out of the provisions of this Article. Once the funds are deducted and remitted to the Union, their disposition thereafter shall be the sole and exclusive obligation and responsibility of the Union. The Union agrees that it will indemnify and hold the Employer harmless from and against any and all claims, losses, demands, damages, suits, penalties, costs, expenses, attorneys' fees, or liabilities of any type whatsoever that may arise out of, or by reason of, any action taken by the Employer in complying with any aspect of this Article, including, but not limited to, any claims against the Employer that may result from confidential personal employee information the Employer provides to the Union (including employees' social security numbers, home addresses, telephone numbers, or e-mail addresses) being divulged by the Union or being accessed or used by some third party who, lawfully or unlawfully, accesses, breaches, or hacks the Union's databases where such information is stored. Any errors made by the Employer in making dues or COPE deductions and remitting same to the Union shall be corrected within a reasonable time after the Union notifies the Employer of such errors.

Section 8.6 This Article shall be in effect only during the term of this Agreement or any extensions thereof, but shall not survive the expiration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9: UNION ADVOCATES

Section 9.1 The Union shall have the right to designate up to a maximum of three (3) Advocates. The Union shall designate the shift and/or area(s) that each Advocate will be responsible for. The Union shall notify the Employer in writing of the Advocates' designation (including the name of each Advocate and the shift(s) and/or area(s) they will be responsible for). At least two (2) of the Advocates must be full-time bargaining unit employees of the Employer, and all Advocates must be assigned to the respective shifts and/or areas that each represents. The Employer will only recognize Advocates who have been so designated in writing by the Union.

Section 9.2 Advocates shall conduct all Union business, including the investigation and processing of grievances, only during their breaks, lunch periods, and before or after their

shifts. Advocates shall not be paid by the Employer for any time they spend conducting Union business. At no time shall an Advocate interfere with or interrupt resident or patient care, the Employer's operations, or any other employees who are working. An Advocate will not leave their work area or enter into another work area to perform any Union duties without the prior permission of the supervisor(s) responsible for the respective work areas.

Section 9.3 Designation of an employee as an Advocate does not affect that employee's responsibility and obligation to devote their working time entirely to performing productive work for the Employer's business operations, unless the Advocate is serving as a Weingarten representative during their shift pursuant to Section 5 below.

Section 9.4 An Advocate representing a grievant will be released from work without pay for the purposes of attending and/or participating in a grievance meeting with the Employer and/or an arbitration hearing. To qualify for release from work, the Advocate must notify their supervisor at least five (5) business days in advance of the time they want off. If from the date that a grievance meeting is scheduled there are less than five (5) business days left before the meeting, then the Advocate must notify their supervisor immediately after the grievance meeting is scheduled of their need to be off work to attend the meeting. The Advocate will be excused from work only for the time they are actually needed at the meeting or arbitration hearing, including reasonable travel time to and from the meeting or hearing.

Section 9.5 An Advocate will be released from work with pay, and without the requirement of any advance notice to the Employer, for the purpose of serving as a Weingarten representative when so requested by an employee.

ARTICLE 10: BULLETIN BOARD

The Employer will provide the Union with one (1) glass enclosed bulletin board (measuring 24 inches by 36 inches) in a location readily accessible to bargaining unit employees for the purpose of communicating information regarding official Union business, Union meetings, and other Union business related to the administration of this

Agreement. All materials posted on this bulletin board must be dated and signed by an appropriately designated Union official or representative. A copy of all materials to be posted must be provided to the Employer prior to being posted. Posted materials shall not be intentionally misleading, contain intentional misstatements, or disparage the Employer or its officers, agents, employees, residents, patients, or vendors. The Employer reserves the right to remove any materials from this bulletin board that violate this Article, are inappropriate, or are not related to the administration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 11: ORIENTATION

Section 11.1 Upon request by the Union, one (1) Union advocate (or a Union representative if no Union advocates are available) will be afforded the opportunity to meet with newly hired bargaining unit employees for twenty (20) minutes within their first thirty (30) days of employment. This meeting will be paid time. During this orientation meeting the Union advocate (or a Union representative if no Union advocates are available) shall not make any disparaging comments about the Employer.

Section 11.2 The Union shall be solely responsible for providing newly hired bargaining unit employees with Union membership and dues authorization forms and for collecting those completed forms from newly hired bargaining unit employees. The Union and/or its advocates are responsible for providing the Employer with the originals or legible copies of all Union membership and dues authorization forms signed by each bargaining unit employee from whom the Employer is obligated to deduct and remit Union dues or other voluntary contributions.

ARTICLE 12: LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Section 12.1 Up to three (3) Employer representatives who work at the facility and three (3) Union Advocates who work at the facility shall meet for the purpose of discussing issues of mutual concern arising out of the Labor Management relationship at times and dates agreeable to both Parties at least once every six (6) months, or at such other times and

frequencies as both Parties may agree. By mutual agreement of the Parties, which shall not be unreasonably denied, the Parties may add additional representatives to attend these meetings.

Section 12.2 The Committee shall not engage in collective bargaining nor serve as a substitute for the grievance procedure. The Parties shall exchange agendas at least five

(5) days prior to the date of the meeting.

Section 12.3 Union Advocates who attend Labor Management Committee meetings during their regularly scheduled shift while on duty shall be paid for the time they spend in the meeting up to a maximum of two (2) hours. The Parties may mutually agree to extend the meeting time and the maximum amount paid to each Union Advocate for the meeting that has been extended.

ARTICLE 13: DEFINITIONS

Section 13.1 Full Time Employees

Full-time employees are defined as employees who are regularly scheduled to work and regularly work at least thirty (30) hours or more per week or sixty (60) hours or more per biweekly pay period. After successfully completing their probationary period, regular full-time employees are eligible for the benefits set forth in this Agreement.

Section 13.2 Part Time Employees

Part-time employees are defined as employees who are regularly scheduled to work and regularly work less than thirty (30) hours per week, but at least twenty (20) hours or more per week or forty (40) hours or more per bi- weekly pay period. Part-time employees are not entitled to any benefits under any of the provisions of this Agreement, unless otherwise specifically provided for in this Agreement.

Section 13.3 Casual or PRN Employees

Casual or PRN employees are defined as employees who work on an intermittent or as

needed basis, but who do not have a regular schedule. Casual or PRN employees are not entitled to any benefits under any of the provisions of this Agreement other than benefits required by federal or state law or otherwise specifically provided for in this Agreement.

Section 13.4 Temporary Employees

A temporary employee is hired for a specific, limited period of time not to exceed ninety (90) consecutive days. Temporary employees can be full-time or part-time depending upon the Employer's needs. Temporary employees are not members of the bargaining unit and have no rights under this Agreement. Temporary employees are not entitled to any benefits under any of the provisions of this Agreement other than benefits required by federal or state law.

ARTICLE 14: SENIORITY

Section 14.1 Seniority shall be defined as an employee's length of continuous uninterrupted service with the Employer in the bargaining unit, commencing with the original date on which the employee first began work in a bargaining unit position at Arcadia Medical Resort of Talbot or its predecessors. Probationary employees shall not accrue seniority during their probationary period, but after the successful completion of their probationary period the employee's seniority shall commence from their first day of work in a bargaining unit position. Seniority shall accrue and not be lost during any paid time off (PTO) and during any paid leave of absence. An employee shall not accrue seniority while on layoff or on an unpaid leave of absence in excess of twelve (12) weeks consistent with the FMLA or Washington State Paid Family Leave.

Section 14.2 An employee's Bargaining Unit seniority shall consist of the length of time employed at Arcadia Medical Resort Talbot, or its predecessors. An employee's Classification seniority shall consist of the length of time an employee has worked continuously in a specific job classification within a department.

Section 14.3 An employee shall lose their seniority and the employment relationship will be terminated for the following reasons:

- a) Voluntary quit or resignation
- b) Retirement;
- c) Discharged for just cause;
- d) Two (2) consecutive work days of no call/no show without a valid medical reason or absent extraordinary circumstances;
- e) Laid off for a period of twelve (12) months or for a period exceeding the length of the employee's continuous service, whichever is less;
- f) Failure to report to work after a layoff within five (5) calendar days after receipt of written notice of recall or ten calendar (10) days after written notice of recall is sent to the last address provided by the employee;
- g) Failure to return to work following the end of a leave of absence;
- Accepting other employment while on an authorized leave of absence without the express written consent of the Employer; or
- i) Transferred or promoted to a position outside the bargaining unit covered by this Agreement.

An employee whose seniority is lost for any of the reasons outlined above shall be considered a new employee if they are subsequently hired by the Employer.

ARTICLE 15: JOB POSTING AND PROMOTIONS

Section 15:1 The Employer shall decide in its sole discretion when and if a job vacancy exists in a bargaining unit position and whether or not any such job vacancy should be filled on a full-time or part-time basis. Until such time as the Employer declares that a job vacancy exists, the Employer has no obligation to post any open position(s).

Section 15.2 When the Employer decides that a job vacancy exists in a bargaining unit position pursuant to Section 1 above, the Employer will post a notice announcing the job vacancy for a minimum of five (5) calendar days in a location readily accessible to bargaining

unit employees. This job posting will identify the department, shift, job classification, and relevant education, experience, skills, or other qualification requirements for the job vacancy in question. If the Employer has openings for more than one job in the same classification, only one job posting is required (which will indicate the number of positions available).

Section 15.3 Bargaining unit employees are eligible to apply for a job posting if they have:

- (1) completed their probationary period;
- (2) are not on an approved leave of absence; and
- (3) have not accepted a posted job vacancy within the past six (6) months (which the Employer may waive in its discretion).

These requirements do not apply to employees who want to apply for a job posting in their same job classification for the sole purpose of a shift change. All eligible employees interested in being considered for a posted job vacancy must apply for the job posting before it is removed by signing the posting in the Human Resources office. Employees who apply for the job posting, who meet all of the qualification and experience requirements for the job vacancy, and who possess all of the requisite skills and ability to perform the job will be considered for the job vacancy together with any other candidates or applicants from any other sources.

Section 15.4 Job vacancies in bargaining unit positions will be awarded to the employee or applicant whom the Employer determines in its discretion is best qualified for the position based on the following factors:

- (1) Skill and ability to perform the posted job
- (2) Knowledge of the requirements of the posted job and meets all qualifications Experience in type of work involved in the posted job
- (3) Prompt and regular work attendance, excluding any absences covered by the Washington State Paid Sick Leave law
- (4) Observance of the Employer's rules and regulations and prior disciplinary record

(5) Ability to perform all of the essential functions of the job, with or without reasonable accommodation

Where the Employer determines that the above factors are relatively equal among two or more employees, the job vacancy will be awarded to the employee who has the greatest seniority. The Employer may cancel a job posting at any time before it is filled.

Section 15.5 The successful employee who is awarded a job vacancy will be given a trial period consisting of up to thirty (30) calendar days in the new position. During this trial period, the employee's work will be evaluated to determine whether the employee is able to perform at an acceptable level in the new position. If the Employer determines in its discretion that the employee will not be able to perform satisfactorily in the new position, the employee may be disqualified at any time during the thirty (30) calendar day trial period. An employee awarded a job vacancy in a new or different job classification may disqualify themself from that new position within the thirty (30) calendar day trial period. If a bargaining unit employee transfers to a non-bargaining unit position, the Employer is not required to hold a bargaining unit position for them or to return them to a bargaining unit position.

Any employee who is disqualified by the Employer or who disqualifies themselves within the thirty (30) calendar day trial period will be moved back to their prior position as long as that position has not been filled, or to another open position they the employee is qualified to perform. An employee shall not be permitted to apply for a job posting for any job vacancy in the same classification from which he/she was previously disqualified for a period of one (1) year, unless the employee can demonstrate to the Employer's satisfaction that they have fully remedied the causes of their disqualification.

In the event an employee is disqualified by the Employer or disqualifies themselves, the Employer may fill the job vacancy with the next best qualified candidate from the remaining employees who signed the original job posting, as determined by the Employer pursuant to Section 4 above, or any other candidates or applicants from any other source. **Section 15.6** The Employer is always entitled to fill any vacancy with the best qualified candidate, including any employees who sign a job posting under this Article as well as any candidates or applicants from any other source.

ARTICLE 16: JOB ASSIGNMENTS & TEMPORARY TRANSFERS

Section 16.1 Employees may be assigned to work in any job or position in their classification(s), and such job assignments may be changed, modified, rotated, or reassigned by the Employer at any time to achieve the Employer's desired objectives for productivity, efficiency, quality, safety, and cross-training. All job assignments will be made at the sole discretion of the Employer's managers and supervisors.

Section 16.2 The Employer may temporarily transfer any employee from his/her current job assignment, classification, or department to any other job assignment, classification, or department anywhere in the facility for a period of up to twenty (20) consecutive workdays. Employees who are temporarily transferred will receive their regular rate of pay or the regular rate of pay for the job to which they are temporarily transferred, whichever is greater. Employees who are temporarily transferred to a job assignment in a different classification will be provided with such training as may be necessary for them to be able perform the specific job duties they are assigned.

ARTICLE 17: HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

Section 17.1 The work week for payroll purposes and for determining overtime shall consist of seven (7) consecutive days beginning at 12:01 a.m. Sunday to Saturday at midnight. The Employer may change the starting point of the work week at any time during this Agreement. The payroll period shall consist of two (2) consecutive weeks (14 days) with payment for hours worked made on a biweekly basis. The Employer may change to a weekly payroll period or a bi-monthly payroll period at any time during this Agreement. The Employer will provide at least fifteen (15) days' advance notice to employees before changing the starting point of the work week or the payroll period. When a payday falls on a Holiday recognized in this Agreement, the distribution of paychecks and direct deposits will be done on the preceding day that is not a Holiday.

The Employer will correct any errors in paychecks within three (3) business days after an employee informs the Employer of the error and the Employer is able to validate the error. If the error involves an amount less than \$25.00, it may be corrected by the next pay period after an employee informs the Employer of the error and the Employer is able to validate the error.

Section 17.2 The regular workday for full-time employees who work eight (8) hour shifts normally consists of seven and one-half (7.5) hours plus a 30-minute unpaid meal period, and the regular work week for full-time employees who work eight (8) hour shifts normally consists of thirty-seven and one-half (37.5) hours plus two and one-half (2.5) hours of unpaid meal periods.

Section 17.3 Employees who work more than five (5) hours will be entitled to one (1) thirty (30) minute unpaid meal period. When staffing permits, two (2) fifteen (15) minute paid break periods will be provided for all employees during each eight (8) hour shift. Employees who work a shift of less than eight (8) hours but at least four (4) or more hours will be entitled to one (1) fifteen (15) minute paid break period when staffing permits. The times of all meal periods and break periods will be determined by the Employer according to its operational needs.

Section 17.4 Employees shall receive one and one-half (1.5) times their regular straighttime hourly rate of pay for all hours actually worked in excess of forty (40) hours in any work week. Only hours actually worked shall be considered as time worked in computing overtime. The Employer shall be the sole judge of the need for overtime, and all overtime work must be authorized and approved in advance by a supervisor or manager. There shall be no pyramiding or duplication of overtime pay for the same hours worked under any of the terms of this Article or Agreement.

Section 17.5 The Employer shall have the right to establish, maintain, modify, change, or

discontinue all shifts and workweek schedules, as well as the starting and ending times of all shifts and workweek schedules, so as to obtain the coverage it desires based on its operational needs. The Employer shall determine the number of hours to be worked on each shift and each week by each employee according to the Employer's business needs, and it is understood that the Employer does not guarantee any employee any specified number of hours to be worked either per day, per week, per pay period, per year, or per a fixed schedule. An employee who reports for a shift they were scheduled to work and who is involuntarily sent home due to lack of work will be provided with a minimum of two (2) hours of work or two (2) hours of pay in lieu of work.

Section 17.6 Monthly work schedules will be posted no later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the start of the work schedule. Once schedules are posted, the Employer may revise, change, or supersede any work schedule at any time based on its operating needs. The Employer will notify affected employees of any schedule changes twenty- four (24) hours in advance, except in cases of unforeseen or emergency circumstance.

Bargaining unit employees may submit requests to work open shifts on the schedule. The Employer will fill open shifts on a fair and equitable basis with first preference given to employees who are scheduled to work the fewest hours in a given work week.

Employees in the same job classification may swap shifts with each other provided that such shift swap does not result in any increase in overtime hours for either employee. Employees who want to swap shifts must submit a written request to the Employer at least two (2) business days in advance and the request must be approved by the supervisors of both employees and/or the scheduling coordinator.

Section 17.7 Employees are required to work both scheduled and unscheduled overtime when requested. The Employer shall endeavor to seek volunteers for overtime so far as is practical before mandating employees who will be required to work overtime. The Employer will offer voluntary overtime opportunities to bargaining unit employees on an equitable basis. If an insufficient number of employees volunteer for the overtime needed, overtime

will be mandated, provided that the Employer shall not require mandatory overtime as a normal staffing practice on a regular basis. In selecting which employees are mandated to work overtime, the Employer may take into consideration the fact that a particular employee may not be able to work overtime on a specific day due to reasonable extenuating circumstances such as fatigue, family care responsibilities, medical or other scheduled appointments that cannot be easily rescheduled, etc. When an unscheduled opening on a shift occurs, employees working on the shift immediately prior to the unscheduled open shift will be required to fill the open shift in inverse order of seniority on a rotating basis. If the Employer overlooks or fails to provide an employee with an overtime opportunity, the sole remedy will be to offer the employee the next available overtime assignment that the employee has the skill, ability, and qualifications to perform.

Section 17.8 Employees may be required to work weekends, which are defined as Saturday and Sunday for all employees regardless of shift.

ARTICLE 18: HEALTH & SAFETY

Section 18.1 Since the Employer is governed by applicable federal, state and local health and safety laws, regulations, and standards, the Employer will make the final determination in all matters concerning health and safety. When the Employer learns that a patient or resident has an infectious disease (other than the common cold or flu), the Employer will advise and direct those employees who are involved in providing care to such patient or resident as to the appropriate procedures they should follow in caring for such patient or resident. The Employer will pay for the cost of any tests that it requires employees to take.

Section 18.2 All employees are required to comply with all of the Employer's safety rules, policies, and procedures at all times. Employees must follow all universal precautions and isolation precautions, and wear such protective clothing and PPE as required by the Employer, which the Employer will provide. Employees who intentionally, recklessly, or negligently violate the Employer's safety rules, policies, or procedures shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Section 18.3 Employees must notify the Employer immediately after they sustain a work-related injury or illness. In a case where an employee does not realize right away that they have sustained a work-related injury or illness, such employee must notify the Employer immediately after they recognize that they have sustained a work-related injury or illness. All employees are encouraged to help identify any potential safety hazards (including situations involving residents and/or visitors who have exhibited a pattern of violent behavior) by promptly reporting such to the Employer, and they will not suffer any reprisals for doing so.

ARTICLE 19: DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

Section 19.1 The Employer shall have the right to discharge, suspend, or otherwise discipline an employee for just cause.

Section 19.2 It is recognized that certain offenses are so serious that they may warrant immediate dismissal. Some of these offenses include, but are not limited to:

- a) Physical, verbal, or psychological abuse, mistreatment, or neglect of any patient, resident, or facility personnel;
- b) Failure to obey the feasible instructions of any supervisor or manager, failure to follow directions as to manner or method of performing jobs, refusing to carry out a feasible work assignment or task;
- c) Providing false records, documents, or other information required during the course of employment;
- d) Willful, reckless, or negligent acts that result in an accident or injury to patients, residents, or others, damage or loss to any property or equipment of the Employer or property of any patients, residents, or co-workers;
- e) Any acts of violence including fighting, assault on any of the Employer's representatives, patients, residents, fellow employees, or the public, and/or threatening any violence or harm;

- f) Theft, dishonesty, fraud, misrepresentation of facts, falsification or attempted falsification of any records or documents (including time records), misappropriation of any patient's or resident's funds, property, or valuables, failure to report such incidents, unauthorized swiping or entry of another employee's time record;
- g) Possessing, using, distributing, manufacturing, or selling any illegal drug, any legal drug not in accordance with a valid prescription, or any alcohol while on the Employer's premises, including parking lots;
- Failure to maintain current licensure, certification, and/or registration as required by the position for a period of more than thirty (30) days, unless allowed under licensing guidelines;
- i) Recording time for another employee or having time recorded by another employee;
- j) Possession of any type of firearm or other similar deadly weapon;
- Participating in any strike, work stoppage, or other actions prohibited by the No Strike Article in this Agreement;
- I) Job abandonment without notice by the employee of a valid reason for leaving work;
- m) Unauthorized use of any confidential information;
- n) Failure to comply with published safety rules;
- o) Violation of the Employer's non-discrimination and/or workplace harassment policies;
- p) Conviction of any crime that disqualifies an employee from working in a nursing facility or caring for residents.

While an employee may challenge their discipline or termination through the grievance and arbitration procedures of this Agreement, it is understood and agreed that the type and degree of discipline, up to and including immediate discharge, shall be at the sole discretion of the Employer when imposed for any of the reasons detailed in this Section. The Employer will reference its employee handbook and/or rules of conduct when issuing discipline or termination.

Section 19.3 For less serious offenses that do not warrant immediate discharge, the Employer will normally follow the following progressive discipline schedule:

- a) documented verbal warning
- b) written warning
- c) final written warning and/or disciplinary suspension
- d) termination

In the Employer's discretion, the application of these steps may be cumulative for different types of offenses and may vary depending on the type of offense. The Employer may skip steps in the progressive discipline process based on the seriousness of the offense. Progressive discipline for attendance will be done separately from other progressive discipline.

Section 19.4 For purposes of progressive discipline under Section 3 of this Article, discipline that is more than twelve (12) months old will not be considered in determining additional or future discipline, provided that the employee has not incurred any further disciplinary action during such twelve (12) month period. However, this twelve (12) month provision will not apply to any disciplinary action involving: (1) patient or resident abuse, mistreatment, or neglect; (2) workplace harassment or violation of the Employer's non- discrimination policy; (3) medication errors; (4) any behavior that violates state or federal law; or (5) any last-chance agreement or other similar final disciplinary action before discharge.

Section 19.5 The Employer shall inform an employee covered by this Agreement that they may request to have a Union representative present at any investigatory meeting that may result in the employee being disciplined.

Section 19.6 Upon request by the employee, the Employer will provide copies of any evaluation and/or disciplinary action to the specific employee who is evaluated or disciplined. Copies shall be provided as soon as practicable (generally within seven (7)

calendar days) after they are requested or after the evaluation or discipline.

Section 19.7 If an employee is the subject of any investigation by any federal agency or any agency of the State of Washington, the Employer may, in its discretion, suspend the employee pending the outcome of the investigation. The Employer will notify such employee in writing that after the investigation is completed, they must provide the Employer with the results of the investigation.

ARTICLE 20: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 20.1 It is agreed that the timely adjustment of grievances is desirable in the interest of sound industrial relations. The following grievance procedure is established to provide for the efficient processing and resolution of grievances brought by the Union or the Employer.

Section 20.2 For purposes of this Agreement, a grievance is defined as a complaint that the application or interpretation of a specific provision or provisions of this Agreement violates or fails to comply with one or more express provisions of this Agreement. A controversy as to any matter not specifically covered by an express provision of this Agreement, or which arose prior to the signing of this Agreement, shall not be subject to the grievance procedure. A grievance may be brought by the Union or the Employer. The procedures set forth in this Article shall be the exclusive means for the disposition of all grievances under this Agreement.

Section 20.3. All grievances by the Union for itself or on behalf of an employee shall be processed in the following manner:

Prior to the filing of any written grievance in Step One below, the affected employee (with or without the presence of a Union Advocate at the employee's option) may first discuss the matter with his/her immediate supervisor to try to resolve the matter informally in a mutually satisfactory manner. If the grievance is not resolved by the immediate supervisor, and the employee wishes to pursue it further, the employee may take it up with a manager or their designated representative (with or without the presence of a Union Advocate at the

employee's option). It is expressly understood that if the immediate supervisor and/or manager and the employee resolve the grievance at this step, such resolution shall not be considered a binding precedent on the parties to this Agreement. If the grievance has not been resolved informally and the employee wishes to pursue the matter further, the employee may request that the Union complete a written grievance form and file a grievance at Step One.

Step One: Prior to presenting any grievance at Step One, the Union shall investigate the subject of the grievance to the extent it is reasonably able to determine whether it meets or may meet the definition set forth in this Article, is justified under the terms of this Agreement, and that there are reasonable grounds to believe that the claim is true in fact. To be valid, the grievance must be presented in writing to the Employer within ten (10) days of the event(s) giving rise to the grievance. In cases concerning mistakes in computing pay amounts on paychecks, the written grievance must be presented in writing to the Imployer within ten (10) days of the day the aggrieved employee received the disputed paycheck.

To be valid, all grievances must be presented in writing on a form agreeable to the Union and Employer, must be signed and dated by the aggrieved employee and/or a Union Advocate or Representative, and must include at a minimum all of the following information: (1) the Article(s) of this Agreement that are alleged to have been violated; (2) the date (and if known, the time and place) of the alleged event(s) giving rise to the grievance; (3) a brief description of the facts, circumstances, and issues that gave rise to the grievance sufficient to provide the parties with a clear understanding of the nature of the claim(s) involved; and (4) the specific relief or remedy sought.

The Employer will issue a written answer to the grievance within ten (10) days following receipt of the written grievance. The Employer may elect to conduct a meeting with the aggrieved employee and a Union Advocate and/or Representative prior to issuing the Step One answer.

Step Two: If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved in Step One, it may be appealed by

the Union to the Administrator within ten (10) days after the issuance of a Step One answer, or in the event no Step One answer is issued, upon expiration of the time allowed for the issuance of a Step One answer. To be valid, the appeal must be in writing, signed by the Union Advocate or Representative, and specify the basis of the appeal. Upon receipt of the appeal by the Administrator, a meeting will be held within ten (10) days between the Union's Representative (at the Union's option), the Union Advocate involved, the aggrieved employee, the Administrator, and any other management official(s) the Employer deems appropriate. The Administrator will issue a decision in writing on the grievance within ten (10) days after the Step Two grievance meeting, or if no meeting is held, within ten (10) days after the Administrator receipt of the Step Two grievance appeal.

Section 20.4 If the Employer, the Union, or a grievant fails to comply with any of the terms of this Article, or fails to file a timely grievance, or fails to appeal a grievance from one step to the next step within the time limits prescribed above, the grievance involved shall be deemed waived and null and void, the matter shall be ended with prejudice, and the grievance will not be subject to further appeal, reconsideration, or demand for arbitration. Failure of the Employer to answer any grievance within the time specified will be deemed a denial of the grievance by the Employer and will obligate the Union and/or aggrieved employee to appeal to the next step within the requisite time period.

Section 20.5 Grievances involving the termination of an employee's employment or that affect a group or class of employees will start at Step Two of the grievance procedure, provided further that any such grievance must be presented in writing (on a form that complies with all the requirements in Step One above) within ten (10) days after the termination or date of the event(s) giving rise to the grievance. Grievances brought by the Employer also will be initiated at Step Two with a meeting between the Union Advocate and/or Union Representative, the Administrator, or their designated representative, and any other management official(s) the Employer deems appropriate.

Section 20.6 All of the time limits specified in this Article are to be strictly applied, and may

be extended only by mutual written agreement of all parties. Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays shall be excluded in computing any time limits set forth above.

Section 20.7 Notwithstanding the pendency of any grievance, except in cases where the health or safety of an employee(s) is at risk, all employees are expected to comply with, and faithfully carry out, all orders, instructions, and policies, whether written or oral, even though they may be the basis for the grievance, and failure to do so constitutes insubordination that may be grounds for discipline up to and including termination.

Section 20.8 Signatures on grievances and appeals of grievances under this Article may be done by electronic signature.

ARTICLE 21: ARBITRATION

Section 21.1 A grievance that remains unsettled after having been fully processed pursuant to the provisions of the Grievance Procedure may be submitted to arbitration upon the written request of the Union or Employer within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of the answer in Step Two of the grievance procedure, or in a case where no answer is issued, within fifteen (15) days of the date the answer was due, or in the case of an Employer grievance, within fifteen (15) days of the Second Step meeting.

Section 21.2 A grievance not appealed to arbitration within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the Employer's written answer at Step Two of the grievance procedure, or in a case where no answer is issued, within fifteen (15) days of the date the answer was due, shall be waived and barred from arbitration and shall end the matter with prejudice according to the Employer's last written answer if one has been issued.

Section 21.3 The Union and Employer shall first attempt to agree upon an impartial arbitrator. If they cannot agree within fourteen (14) days from receipt of the written request or demand for arbitration, either party may request the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) to submit a list of seven (7) names of qualified arbitrators. Upon receipt of the panel, the parties shall first attempt to agree upon an arbitrator from the panel. 1f they

cannot agree, and the FMCS panel is acceptable to both parties, the parties shall alternately strike names from the list (with the party requesting arbitration striking first) until one (1) name remains, and that person shall serve as arbitrator. Either or both parties may object to one entire panel of arbitrators submitted by the FMCS, in which case either party may request the FMCS to submit a second or third panel of seven (7) qualified arbitrators, and the parties shall proceed to select an arbitrator from this second or third panel according to the same procedures as specified above for the first panel. To be valid, the FMCS Request for Arbitration Panel Form must specify that the arbitrators be provided at random from a sub-regional panel, and that all Arbitrators be members of the National Academy of Arbitrators.

Section 21.4 Each arbitration hearing shall deal with not more than one (1) grievance unless the parties mutually agree in writing.

Section 21.5 The Employer will not be responsible for any lost pay incurred by any employee(s) whom the Union calls to testify as witnesses at any arbitration hearing. The Union will notify the Employer in writing at least five (5) business days prior to the arbitration hearing of the names of any employee witnesses it wants to call. The Employer may adjust or stagger the release of employees so as not to interfere with work. Employees released from work under this provision will be expected to return to work as soon as practicable after they have testified, or upon recess of the hearing.

Section 21.6 No Union official, advocate, or grievant will be paid for any time spent preparing for or attending any grievance meeting or arbitration hearing. If work needs permit, in the sole discretion of the Employer, the Union advocate and grievant may be granted reasonable time off without pay to attend such meeting or hearing, where such time off is requested by the Union advocate or grievant for a matter in which they are personally involved at least five (5) days in advance of the meeting or hearing.

Section 21.7 The fees and expenses of the arbitrator, and all expenses for the location for the arbitration hearing and court reporter fees for a hearing transcript, shall be shared

equally between the Union and Employer. All other expenses, including those connected with the calling of witnesses, etc., shall be borne by the party incurring such expenses.

Section 21.8 In determining claims for back pay, the gross backpay amount shall be reduced by any unemployment compensation benefits and any other compensation that the aggrieved employee may have received from any other source (including self-employment) during the period for which back pay is claimed. No back pay shall be awarded for any period during which the employee, in accordance with his or her seniority standing, would have been laid off.

Section 21.9 The arbitrator shall have no power to alter, modify, amend, change, add to, or subtract from any of the terms of this Agreement, but shall determine only whether there has been a violation of this Agreement as alleged in the written grievance or any amended grievance or appeal. The arbitrator's decision shall be limited to the interpretation and application of the provisions of the Agreement, and the arbitrator shall not make any findings or determinations or rule on any claims or issues not contained in the written grievance or any amended grievance or appeal, nor shall he consider or give weight to any matter, evidence, or testimony relating or pertaining to issues or claims not contained in the written grievance or appeal.

Section 21.10 The decision and award of the arbitrator shall be in writing and within the limits herein prescribed. Provided that the arbitrator does not exceed the scope of his jurisdiction under this Article and does not dispense his own brand of industrial justice, the decision and award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties to the dispute.

Section 21.11 All of the time limits specified in this Article are to be strictly applied and may be extended only by mutual written agreement of all parties. Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays shall be excluded in computing any time limits set forth above.

ARTICLE 22: WAGES

Section 22.1 Minimum New Hire Base Rates

Employees may be hired at or above the following minimum base wage rates, provided that no newly hired employee will be paid a higher wage rate than current employees who have the same years of experience in the job classification:

Classification	Base	1 Year	2 Years	3 Years	4 years	5 Years
Dietary Aide	\$ 15.00	\$ 15.23	\$ 15.47	\$ 15.71	\$ 15.95	\$ 16.20
Hospitality Aide	\$ 15.00					
Medical Records Assistant	\$ 15.00	\$ 15.23	\$ 15.47	\$ 15.71	\$ 15.95	\$ 16.20
Housekeeping Aide	\$ 16.00	\$ 16.17	\$ 16.33	\$ 16.50	\$ 16.67	\$ 16.84
Laundry Aide	\$ 16.00	\$ 16.17	\$ 16.33	\$ 16.50	\$ 16.67	\$ 16.84
Nursing Assistant Registered (NAR)	\$ 16.00					
Cook	\$ 17.00	\$ 17.26	\$ 17.53	\$ 17.80	\$ 18.07	\$ 18.35

Add On Rates

As of the beginning of the first pay period after the ratification and execution of this Agreement through June 30, 2023, the above minimum new hire base rates shall be increased by the following "Add On" amounts based on additional funding the Employer receives from the State of Washington for that time period.

Classification	Add On	
Dietary Aide	\$	1.50
Hospitality Aide	\$	1.00
Medical Records Assistant	\$	1.50
Housekeeping Aide	\$	1.50
Laundry Aide	\$	1.50
Nursing Assistant Registered (NAR)	\$	2.75
Cook	\$	2.00

ears Since CNA Licensure	Base Rate	Ad	d On *	Total
ase	\$ 17.50	\$	2.75	\$ 20.25
year	\$ 17.77	\$	2.75	\$ 20.52
years	\$ 18.04	\$	2.75	\$ 20.79
years	\$ 18.32	\$	2.75	\$ 21.07
years	\$ 18.60	\$	2.75	\$ 21.35
years	\$ 18.89	\$	2.75	\$ 21.64
years	\$ 19.18	\$	2.75	\$ 21.93
years	\$ 19.48	\$	2.75	\$ 22.23
years	\$ 19.77	\$	2.75	\$ 22.52
years	\$ 20.06	\$	2.75	\$ 22.81
Ο+ years	\$ 20.37	\$	2.75	\$ 23.12

Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA) Minimum New Hire Rates:

* As of the beginning of the first pay period after the ratification and execution of this Agreement through June 30, 2023, the above minimum new hire base rates for CNAs shall be increased by the "Add On" amounts based on additional funding the Employer receives from the State of Washington for that time period.

LPN Minimum New Hire Rates:

Years Since LPN Licensure	Rate
Base	\$ 31.50
1 year	\$ 32.13
2 years	\$ 33.43
3 years	\$ 34.10
4 years	\$ 34.78
5 years	\$ 35.47
6 years	\$ 36.18
7 years	\$ 36.91

8 years	\$ 37.65
9 years	\$ 38.40
10+ years	\$ 39.17

RN Minimum New Hire Rates:

Years Since RN Licensure Rate					
Base	\$	37.50			
1 year	\$	38.25			
2 years	\$	39.02			
3 years	\$	39.80			
4 years	\$	40.59			
5 years	\$	41.40			
6 years	\$	42.23			
7 years	\$	43.08			
8 years	\$	43.94			
9 years	\$	44.82			
10+ years	\$	45.71			

The Employer may increase any of the above minimum wage rates in this Section at any time during this Agreement provided that no newly hired employee will be paid a higher wage rate than current employees who have the same years of experience in the job classification.

Section 22.2 Wage Placement Rates for Current Employees

As of the beginning of the first pay period after the ratification and execution of this Agreement, all bargaining unit employees will receive a one-time placement of their wage rates based on their years of experience in their current job classification as determined by their placement on the charts below, provided that no employee will have their current wage rate reduced:

Classification	Bas	e	1 Yr	2 Yr	3 Yr	4 Yr	5 Yr	6 Yr	7 Yr	8 Yr	9 Yr	10 Yr
Hospitality Aide	\$	15.00										
Medical Records Assistant	\$	15.00	\$ 15.23	\$ 15.46	\$ 15.70	\$ 15.95	\$ 16.19					
Dietary Aide	\$	15.25	\$ 15.50	\$ 15.74	\$ 15.98	\$ 16.23	\$ 16.48	\$ 16.74	\$ 17.00	\$ 17.26	\$ 17.52	\$ 17.79
Housekeeping Aide	\$	16.25	\$ 16.40	\$ 16.62	\$ 16.82	\$ 17.02	\$ 17.22	\$ 17.42	\$ 17.62	\$ 17.82	\$ 18.02	\$ 18.22
Laundry Aide	\$	16.25	\$ 16.40	\$ 16.62	\$ 16.82	\$ 17.02	\$ 17.22	\$ 17.42	\$ 17.62	\$ 17.82	\$ 18.02	\$ 18.22
Nursing Assistant (NAR)	\$	16.50										
Cook	\$	17.50	\$ 17.77	\$ 18.04	\$ 18.32	\$ 18.60	\$ 18.89	\$ 19.18	\$ 19.48	\$ 19.78	\$ 20.08	\$ 20.39

Add On Rates

As of the beginning of the first pay period after the ratification and execution of this Agreement through June 30, 2023, the above base rates shall be increased by the following "Add On" amounts based on additional funding the Employer is receiving from the State of Washington.

Classification	Add On		
Dietary Aide	\$	1.50	
Hospitality Aide	\$	1.00	
Medical Records Assistant	\$	1.50	
Housekeeping Aide	\$	1.50	
Laundry Aide	\$	1.50	
Nursing Assistant Registered (NAR)	\$	2.75	
Cook	\$	2.00	

Certified Nursing Assistant (CNA)

Years since CNA Licensure	Ba	se Rate	Ad	ld On*	٦	Fotal
Base	\$	17.50	\$	2.75	\$	20.25
1 year	\$	18.00	\$	2.75	\$	20.75
2 years	\$	18.30	\$	2.75	\$	21.05
3 years	\$	18.60	\$	2.75	\$	21.35
4 years	\$	18.90	\$	2.75	\$	21.65
5 years	\$	19.20	\$	2.75	\$	21.95
6 years	\$	19.50	\$	2.75	\$	22.25
7 years	\$	19.80	\$	2.75	\$	22.55
8 years	\$	20.10	\$	2.75	\$	22.85
9 years	\$	20.40	\$	2.75	\$	23.15
10 years	\$	20.70	\$	2.75	\$	23.45
11 years	\$	21.00	\$	2.75	\$	23.75
12 years	\$	21.30	\$	2.75	\$	24.05
13 years	\$	21.60	\$	2.75	\$	24.35
14 years	\$	21.90	\$	2.75	\$	24.65
15+ years	\$	22.20	\$	2.75	\$	24.95

* As of the beginning of the first pay period after the ratification and execution of this Agreement through June 30, 2023, the above base rates for CNAs shall be increased by the "Add On" amounts based on additional funding the Employer receives from the State of Washington for that time period.

LPN

Years since LPN Licensure	ure Rate		
Base	\$	31.50	
1 year	\$	32.45	
2 years	\$	33.41	
3 years	\$	34.42	
4 years	\$	35.45	
5 years	\$	36.17	
6 years	\$	37.61	
7 years	\$	38.74	
8 years	\$	39.90	
9 years	\$	41.10	
10+ years	\$	42.33	

Years since RN Licensure	Ra	ate
Base	\$	37.50
1 year	\$	38.63
2 years	\$	39.78
3 years	\$	40.98
4 years	\$	42.21
5 years	\$	43.47
6 years	\$	44.78
7 years	\$	46.12
8 years	\$	47.50
9 years	\$	48.93
10+ years	\$	50.40

Section 22.3 Wage Increases

- A. On the first pay period after the first anniversary of the ratification and execution of this Agreement, all non-probationary employees will receive a two percent (2%) increase in their base hourly wage rate.
- B. On the first pay period after the second anniversary of the ratification and execution of this Agreement, all non-probationary employees will receive a two percent (2%) increase in their base hourly wage rate.

Section 22.4 Restorative Aide Premium

CNAs who are classified as Restorative Aides will be paid an additional \$0.50 per hour above the applicable CNA wage rate for their years of experience.

Section 22.5 Shower Aide Premium

CNAs who are assigned to work as a Shower Aide will be paid an additional \$0.25 per hour for the hours they work as a Shower Aide.

Section 22.6 Lead Premium

The Employer in its sole discretion may: (1) establish lead position(s) for any job classification; (2) select employee(s) who will fill such lead position(s) after posting the lead position(s) pursuant to Article 15 (Job Posting and Promotions); (3) remove any employee

from a lead position; and (4) discontinue the use of any lead position. Employees assigned to a lead position will receive a lead premium of seventy-five cents (\$0.75) per hour above their base wage rate.

Section 22.7 Mentor Premium

The Employer in its sole discretion may select full-time employees who have at minimum of one (1) year of service and no corrective actions within the prior six (6) month period to serve as mentors to help orient and train newly hired employees. Each employee assigned to be a mentor will receive a mentor premium of one dollar (\$1.00) per hour above their base wage rate for all hours they are actively involved in training, mentoring, leading, and monitoring a newly hired employee during their probationary period.

Section 22.8 Shift Differentials

CNAs will receive a shift differential of fifty cents (\$0.50) per hour for all hours worked on a weekday or weekend evening shift (currently between 2:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m.) and one dollar (\$1.00) per hour for all hours worked on a weekday or weekend night shift (currently between 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.). LPNs and RNs will receive a shift differential of fifty cents (\$0.50) per hour for all hours worked on a weekday or weekend evening shift (currently between 2:00 p.m. and 10:30 p.m.) and one dollar (\$1.00) per hour for all hours worked on a weekday or weekend evening shift (currently between 2:00 p.m. and 10:30 p.m.) and one dollar (\$1.00) per hour for all hours worked on a weekday or weekend evening shift (currently between 2:00 p.m. and 10:30 p.m.) and one dollar (\$1.00) per hour for all hours worked on a weekday or weekend night shift (currently between 10:00 p.m. and 6:30 a.m.). The Employer retains the exclusive right to add additional amounts to these shift differentials on an as needed basis.

Section 22.9 Other Bonuses

The Employer retains the exclusive right to provide signing bonuses, referral bonuses, longevity bonuses, retention bonuses, extra shift bonuses, and other types of incentive bonuses to employee(s) on an as needed basis. The terms and eligibility for such bonuses will applied in an equitable manner. The Employer will notify the Union in writing of any new or modified incentive bonuses prior to implementation, and upon request of the Union, the Employer and Union will discuss such incentive bonuses for the sole purpose of clarifying any

qualification requirements for such incentive bonuses, provided the Parties acknowledge and agree that these discussions do not require the Parties to engage in any bargaining before the Employer can implement any such incentive bonuses.

Section 22.10 Wage Reopener

In the event the amount of additional funding the Employer is eligible to receive from the State of Washington for the period from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, some of which the Employer must use for wages for employees in specific bargaining unit positions should exceed the Employer's projected wage expenses for employees in those specific bargaining unit positions during that same time period, the Employer and Union may reopen this Agreement for the sole purpose of negotiating what amounts of any projected unused Washington State funds will be allocated to additional wages for employees in those specific bargaining unit positions for the period from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. Either Party may give the other Party written notice of their desire to reopen this Agreement after July 1, 2022.

In the event the amount of additional funding the Employer is eligible to receive from the State of Washington for the period from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, some of which the Employer must use for wages for employees in specific bargaining unit positions should exceed the Employer's projected wage expenses for employees in those specific bargaining unit positions during that same time period, the Employer and Union may reopen this Agreement for the sole purpose of negotiating what amounts of any projected unused Washington State funds will be allocated to additional wages for employees in those specific bargaining unit positions for the period from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. Either Party may give the other Party written notice of their desire to reopen this Agreement after July 1, 2023.

In the event the amount of additional funding the Employer is eligible to receive from the State of Washington for the period from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025, some of which the Employer must use for wages for employees in specific bargaining unit positions should

exceed the Employer's projected wage expenses for employees in those specific bargaining unit positions during that same time period, the Employer and Union may reopen this Agreement for the sole purpose of negotiating what amounts of any projected unused Washington State funds will be allocated to additional wages for employees in those specific bargaining unit positions for the period from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. Either Party may give the other Party written notice of their desire to reopen this Agreement after July 1, 2024.

The Union and Employer expressly agree that they are each giving up their respective rights to strike or lockout during any reopeners under this Section, and instead, that all of the terms in Article 35 of this Agreement (No Strike/No Lockout) shall continue to remain in full force and effect at all times during the full term of this Agreement, including at all times during any reopeners under this Section.

ARTICLE 23: PAID TIME OFF (PTO)

Section 23.1 Eligible full-time employees will accrue Paid Time Off (PTO) according to the schedule below based on the anniversary of their date of hire. Newly hired eligible full-time employees will begin to accrue PTO after completion of ninety (90) days of employment.

Years of Service	Hourly Accrual Rate	Annual Maximum
After 90 days to 1 year		
(4-12 months)	0.038 per hour	80 hours
1-2 years		
(13-24 months)	0.041 per hour	85 hours
3-5 years		
(25-60 months)	0.058 per hour	120 hours
6+ years		
(61+ months)	0.077 per hour	160 hours

Full-Time B	argaining	Unit I	Employees
-------------	-----------	--------	-----------

Employees may accrue up to the annual maximum of hours on the chart above. Once an employee accrues the annual maximum of hours on the chart above, they will stop accruing any PTO until such time as they have used some of their accrued PTO hours so that their total balance of accrued PTO hours falls below the annual maximum of hours, at which point they will resume accruing PTO hours according to the above schedule.

Section 23.2 PTO may be used in thirty (30) minute increments. PTO is paid at an employee's regular straight time hourly rate in accordance with the established pay periods. An employee may use up to a maximum of forty (40) hours of PTO per work week. If an employee has other hours worked or hours paid during a work week, then the total of their PTO hours plus any other hours worked or paid during that work week cannot exceed forty (40) hours. Paid PTO hours are not considered as hours worked in calculating overtime.

Section 23.3 To best meet the business needs of the Employer, employees should give as much advance notice as possible in submitting their requests for PTO. All requests for PTO must be made in writing by the 15th day of the month prior to the month in which the PTO will be taken (unless the PTO is taken for illness or a medical reason where notice of at least one (1) week could not be given). The Employer shall determine in its sole discretion how many employees in each job classification and shift can be off on PTO at any given time based on its business needs, and will endeavor to grant or deny PTO requests within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of the written request. If a request for PTO is denied, the Employer and employee shall work together to find mutually agreeable dates for PTO that the Employer is able to approve. Requests for PTO will be approved by the Administrator or Department Head on a first come, first served basis. If two or more employees request the same PTO dates and the Employer cannot accommodate all such requests, preference will be given to the employee(s) with the most seniority. However, if a more junior employee has requested and received approval for scheduled PTO, a more senior employee's later request may not interfere with the junior employee's scheduled PTO. Once an employee's PTO request is approved, it may not be changed or cancelled without the consent of the Employer and employee.

Section 23.4 Employees may not use any PTO during their fourteen (14) day resignation period regardless of when it was scheduled. Employees who provide at least fourteen (14)

days advance written notice of their voluntarily resignation and who satisfactorily work all scheduled shifts during the (14) day notice period through their last day of work will be paid fifty percent (50%) of their accrued but unused PTO balance up to a maximum of forty (40) hours at the employee's regular straight time hourly rate. Employees who are terminated by the Employer or who fail to give a minimum of fourteen (14) days advance written notice of their resignation or who fail to satisfactorily work all scheduled shifts during the (14) day notice period (other than shifts for which they take paid sick leave under the Washington Paid Sick Leave Law) will forfeit all of their accrued but unused PTO.

ARTICLE 24: WASHINGTON PAID SICK LEAVE

Section 24.1 All employees, regardless of status, will accrue one (1) hour of paid sick leave for every forty (40) hours worked (accrual rate of .025/hour). Employee will accrue paid sick leave from their first day of service with the Employer and may begin using their paid sick leave on their ninety-first (91st) day of employment. Accrued sick leave hours are not earned until the end of each pay period. Sick leave hours do not accrue during unpaid leaves of absence.

Section 24.2 Sick leave will be paid out at an employee's normal hourly rate in increments equal to the actual number of hours an employee missed work due to their own illness/injury or other qualifying event.

Section 24.3 Employees may use their paid sick leave for absences caused by their own illness/injury or as required by the Washington Paid Sick Leave Law, to attend to the illness of a dependent child, or to care for a spouse, domestic partner, sibling, parent, parent-in-law, or grandparent.

Section 24.4 Employees will be given their sick leave balance on their paystubs no less than two times per month, which will include the amount of sick leave used since the previous pay period and all increments of hours accrued since the previous pay period.

Section 24.5 The Employer may require a doctor's note before authorizing payment of sick

leave, as well as a doctor's release if an employee returns to work after having missed more than three (3) scheduled shifts due to their own illness/injury or other qualifying event, provided that obtaining the doctor's note or release does not result in an unreasonable burden or expense on the employee.

Section 24.6 There is no payment for unused sick leave upon termination or separation of employment regardless of the reason. An employee's unused sick leave balance will be reinstated if an employee who is terminated or leaves their job for any reason is thereafter reemployed by the Employer within twelve (12) months.

Section 24.7 Up to a maximum of 40 hours of accrued but unused sick leave may be carried over from one calendar year to the next calendar year, and any unused sick leave in excess of forty (40) hours is forfeited.

ARTICLE 25: HOLIDAYS

Section 25.1 The Employer recognizes the following Holidays: New Year's Day; Memorial Day; Independence Day; Labor Day; Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. For purposes of this Article, a holiday runs from 12:00 a.m. to 11:59 p.m. on the calendar day of the Employer recognized Holiday.

Section 25.2 To be eligible for premium pay for hours worked on a Holiday in Section 3 below, employees must have worked their entire scheduled day before the Holiday and their entire scheduled day after the Holiday (including any shifts the employee picked up the day before and/or after the Holiday), as well as all hours they are scheduled to work on the Holiday.

Section 25.3 Provided they meet the eligibility requirements in Section 2 above, full-time and part-time employees who have completed their probationary period will be paid one and one-half (1.5) times their regular hourly rate for all hours worked on a Holiday.

ARTICLE 26: INSURANCE

Section 26.1 Medical Plans

All eligible bargaining unit employees and their dependents may participate in the same current medical plans ("Medical Plans") the Employer provides to its non-bargaining unit employees, provided the employee has worked the requisite period to become eligible for such benefits and the employee and dependent(s) are otherwise eligible to participate in such plans under the terms of the plan documents, which are incorporated by reference in this Agreement. Bargaining unit employees who are regularly scheduled to work thirty (30) or more hours per week are eligible to participate in the Employer's medical plans on the first of the month after ninety (90) days of employment.

The actual Summary Plan Descriptions (SPD) and/or Medical Plan documents will control the benefits to which eligible bargaining unit employees and their dependents are entitled under the Medical Plans, and any and all disputes under the Medical Plans, including but not limited to coverage and benefit determinations, must be resolved exclusively through the Medical Plans' dispute resolution procedures.

As of April 1, 2022, bargaining unit employee contributions per Bi-Weekly pay period for the Employer's current Medical Plans with United Health Care (UHC) are as follows:

Plan A	Bi-Weekly Contribution
Employee	\$65.94
E + Spouse	\$138.47
E + Child(ren)	\$118.68
Family	\$191.21
Plan B	Bi-Weekly Contribution
Employee	\$80.75
E + Spouse	\$169.56
E + Child(ren)	\$145.34
Family	\$234.16
Plan C	Bi-Weekly Contribution
Employee	\$101.87
E + Spouse	\$213.94
E + Child(ren)	\$183.38
Family	\$295.46

Employees have no right, title or interest in any reserves or assets of the Employer's Medical Plans. Employee contributions will be deducted from employees Bi-Weekly paychecks in equal increments in accordance with the Employer's normal payroll practices.

The Employer has the right to change any or all aspects of such Medical Plans at any time including, but not limited to, third party administrators, insurance carriers, self- insurance or risk pools, PPO or HMO networks, medical providers, covered benefits or benefit levels, maximum out-of-pocket limits, deductible amounts, co-payments, employee contribution amounts, or any other aspect of plan design, or to offer coverage through private or public exchanges, so long as such changes apply equally to eligible non-bargaining unit employees of the Employer.

Except as specifically provided herein, the terms of participation in and benefits provided under the Employer's Medical Plans will be governed by the plan documents for such plans, as may be modified from time to time by the Employer. The grievance and arbitration provisions of this Agreement will not apply to any claim or appeal for eligibility or benefits under the Employer's Medical Plans. Any such claim or appeal for eligibility or benefits must be made under the claim and appeal procedures set forth in the plan documents.

Consistent with the Employer's right to modify any plan design element as provided herein, if the Employer determines that the total dollar amount of health coverage costs for any level of coverage will reach either of the "Cadillac Plan Excise Tax" statutory thresholds in Section 4980I of the IRS Code of 1986, as amended ("IRS Code") for either self-insured or fully-insured coverage, or if changes under the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act ("ACA") are enacted into law or made applicable through regulations or through binding sub-regulatory guidance and such changes render the Employer's health plan out of compliance with the ACA, then the Employer may unilaterally adopt one or more plan design changes that are sufficient to reduce the overall value of the plan to a level that would fall below the statutory limits under IRS Code Section 4980I or to bring the plan into compliance with the ACA, so long as such changes apply equally to eligible non-bargaining unit employees of the

Employer.

Section 26.2 Dental Plan

All eligible bargaining unit employees and their dependents may participate in the same current dental plan ("Dental Plan") the Employer provides to its non-bargaining unit employees, provided the employee has worked the requisite period to become eligible for such benefits and the employee and dependent(s) are otherwise eligible to participate in such plan under the terms of the plan document, which is incorporated by reference in this Agreement. The actual Summary Plan Description (SPD) and/or Dental Plan document will control the benefits to which eligible bargaining unit employees and their dependents are entitled under the Dental Plan, and any and all disputes under the Dental Plan, including but not limited to coverage and benefit determinations, must be resolved through the Dental Plan's dispute resolution procedures.

As of April 1, 2022, bargaining unit employee contributions per Bi-Weekly pay period for the Employer's current Dental Plan with Guardian are as follows:

Coverage	Bi-Weekly Contribution
Employee	\$12.99
E + Spouse	\$26.12
E + Child(ren)	\$34.43
Family	\$47.55

The Employer has the right to change any or all aspects of the Dental Plan or the Dental Plan provider or administrator at any time, including but not limited to third party administrators, insurance carriers, self-insurance or risk pools, covered benefits and benefit levels, maximum limits, deductible amounts, co-payments, employee contribution amounts, or any other aspect of plan design, so long as such changes apply equally to eligible non-bargaining unit employees of the Employer. Participating providers may be added or eliminated from the Dental Plan at any time.

Section 26.3 Vision Plan

All eligible bargaining unit employees and their dependents may participate in the same current vision plan ("Vision Plan") the Employer provides to its non-bargaining unit employees, provided the employee has worked the requisite period to become eligible for such benefits and the employee and dependent(s) are otherwise eligible to participate in such plan under the terms of the plan document, which is incorporated by reference in this Agreement. The actual Summary Plan Description (SPD) and/or Vision Plan document will control the benefits to which eligible bargaining unit employees and their dependents are entitled under the Vision Plan, and any and all disputes under the Vision Plan, including but not limited to coverage and benefit determinations, must be resolved through the Vision Plan's dispute resolution procedures.

As of January 1, 2021, bargaining unit employee contributions per Bi-Weekly pay period for the Employer's current Vision Plan with Guardian are as follows:

Coverage	Bi-Weekly Contribution
Employee	\$3.83
Employee + Spouse	\$6.44
Employee + Child(ren)	\$6.57
Family	\$10.39

The Employer has the right to change any or all aspects of the Vision Plan or the Vision Plan provider or administrator at any time, including but not limited to third party administrators, insurance carriers, self-insurance or risk pools, covered benefits and benefit levels, maximum limits, deductible amounts, co-payments, employee contribution amounts, or any other aspect of plan design, so long as such changes apply equally to eligible non-bargaining unit employees of the Employer. Participating providers may be added or eliminated from the Vision Plan at any time.

ARTICLE 27: 401(K) PLAN

Employees who have completed three (3) months of service and are least twenty-one (21) years of age are eligible to participate in the same current 401(k) Plan that the Employer provides to its non-bargaining unit employees. The actual 401(k) Plan document and/or

Summary Plan Description will control all of the specific terms, conditions, requirements, procedures, and benefits to which eligible bargaining unit employees are entitled under the 401(k) Plan, and any disputes under the 401(k) Plan must be resolved exclusively through the 401(k) Plan's dispute resolution procedures.

The Employer has the right to amend or change any provisions of the 401(k) Plan at any time, or to discontinue the 401(k) Plan, so long as such changes or discontinuance apply equally to eligible non-bargaining unit employees of the Employer.

ARTICLE 28: LOW CENSUS

Section 28.1 When short-term fluctuations in census result in the need for the Employer to reduce staffing, the Employer will make its best efforts to reduce staffing as follows:

- Any temporary employees or agency personnel working in the affected job classification(s) on the affected shift(s) will be sent home first.
- 2) The Employer will then send home employees in the affected job classification(s) on the affected shift(s) who's hours worked during the week put them into overtime pay, with such employees to be sent home in the order of their total hours worked during the week from highest to lowest.
- 3) The Employer will then seek volunteers in the affected job classification(s) on the affected shift(s) who will be offered the opportunity to leave work without pay and/or take a day off without pay.

If not enough employees volunteer to be off, employees in the affected job classification(s) on the affected shift(s) will be sent home in the order of their total hours worked during the week from highest to lowest.

Section 28.2 The Union and Employer acknowledge that there can be rapid changes in resident acuity, census, staff availability, and workload requirements, which require mutual understanding, communication, and flexibility. Any claims that the Employer has failed to follow the procedures in this Article shall be a matter for the Labor Management Committee

to discuss and handle and are not subject to the Grievance and Arbitration Procedures in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 29: TEMPORARY REDUCTIONS AND LAYOFFS

General

Section 29.1 The Employer shall have the right to temporarily reduce or lay off any employee(s) when it determines in its sole discretion that business conditions require such a temporary reduction or layoff. Hire date shall prevail in the case of layoff and/or recall, provided that the Employer shall have the right to determine whether employees have the skill level to be retained in case of a layoff and/or a recall. A reduction in the hours of work or the work schedule of any full-time or part-time employee does not constitute a temporary reduction or layoff and this Article does not apply.

Temporary Reductions

Section 29.2 A "Temporary Reduction" is defined as any event that results in an interruption or loss of work of up to thirty (30) consecutive calendar days in duration, such as equipment failures, breakdowns, malfunctions, power interruptions, storms, earthquakes, floods, fire, theft, sabotage, other similar kinds of unscheduled events or acts of God, or any reduction in the available work affecting a particular department or area of the facility that is planned, scheduled, or initiated by the Employer or ordered by any government agency.

Section 29.3 The Employer will first attempt to accommodate any employee(s) affected by a Temporary Reduction by reassigning them by seniority to any other open positions in any job classification that they have the skills, abilities, and qualifications to perform. In making such reassignments, the Employer will give consideration to the employee's seniority, as well as the need to maintain productivity, efficiency, and quality standards. Employees reassigned as a result of a Temporary Reduction shall be paid their regular rate of pay or the regular rate of pay for the position to which they are reassigned, whichever is greater.

Section 29.4 In the event the Employer cannot accommodate reassignment of all of the employee(s) who may be affected by a Temporary Reduction, the most junior employee(s)

in each job classification who are directly affected will be displaced and sent home and they cannot bump or displace any other employees. Other employees whose positions are not directly affected by the particular Temporary Reduction may "volunteer" by seniority to be displaced and sent home instead of the affected employee(s) only in cases where the Temporary Reduction lasts more than one (1) workday and provided that the remaining employees have the skill, ability, and qualifications to perform the remaining work and maintain productivity, efficiency, and quality standards. Any employee who wants to volunteer to be displaced and sent home must affirmatively notify the Employer of their desire, and the Employer shall not be required to solicit or request any such volunteers.

Section 29.5 Employees who are reassigned to other positions as a result of a Temporary Reduction will be returned to their original job classification in the reverse order in which they were reassigned when the Temporary Reduction ends.

Layoffs and Recall

Section 29.6. A "Layoff' is defined as a scheduled or unscheduled reduction in or loss of available work that the Employer anticipates will last in excess of thirty (30) consecutive calendar days. The Employer will endeavor to give affected employees and the Union one (1) week advance notice of a Layoff under this Section where practicable.

Section 29.7 When the Employer decides that a Layoff is necessary, the Employer will first determine the number of employees in each job classification that are in excess of the Employer's needs for each such job classification. Employees shall be laid off by seniority within each affected job classification, with the most junior employee being laid off first, provided that the remaining employees have the skill, ability, and qualifications to perform the remaining work and maintain productivity, efficiency, and quality standards. The Employer may retain any employee regardless of their seniority if the Employer determines that they have certain skills, abilities, or qualifications not possessed by other more senior employees that the Employer determines are necessary to perform any of the remaining work. Any employee who is scheduled to be laid off pursuant to the provisions of this Section

may exercise their seniority to bump the most junior employee in the same or lower rated job classification, provided that the laid-off employee has the skill, ability, and qualifications to perform the work in the other job classification and maintain productivity, efficiency, and quality standards.

Section 29.8 An Employee whose position is not directly affected by a Layoff may "volunteer" by seniority to accept a Layoff instead of an affected employee, provided that the remaining employees have the skill, ability, and qualifications to perform the remaining work and maintain productivity, efficiency, and quality standards. Under such circumstances, the "volunteering" employee(s) will be eligible for recall in the reverse order of their Layoff pursuant to the terms of Section 10 below, and not by their seniority. Under those circumstances, the volunteering employee(s) will be eligible for unemployment compensation benefits.

Section 29.9 Employees who bump or are reassigned during a Layoff shall receive the established rate of pay for the position(s) they work in for the duration of the Layoff.

Section 29.10 Employees on layoff will be recalled in the reverse order in which they were laid off provided they are qualified to perform the available work. Employees who are on layoff for up to twelve (12) months or the length of their continuous service (whichever is less) are also subject to recall at the Employer's sole discretion to any open position with the Employer that they have the skill, ability, and qualifications to perform in the reverse order of their Layoff. Such recalled employees shall then have first preference by seniority for openings in their original job classification before the Employer posts or hires for such open positions. Employees shall be notified of their recall by overnight delivery letter sent to the last address the employee provided to the Employer, and they must return to work within five (5) calendar days after receipt of the recall notice or ten (10) calendar days after the recall notice has been sent to their last known address. Employees not recalled within the time limits in this Section, or who fail to return to work after notification of recall within the time limits in this Section shall be

terminated and lose all seniority rights.

Section 29.11 While on temporary reduction or layoff, employees will not earn, accrue, or be eligible for employee benefits under this Agreement except as may be provided for by an express provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 30: LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Section 30.1 Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Leave and Washington Family Leave Act (WFLA) Leave

The Employer complies with the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and Washington Family Leave Act (WFLA). A summary of FMLA and WFLA leave requirements and benefits are set forth in the Employer's Employee Handbook. For FMLA or WFLA qualifying conditions that allow a maximum of 12 weeks of FMLA or WFLA leave in a 12- month period, the Employer will use a "rolling" 12-month period measured backward from the date an employee uses any FMLA or WFLA leave.

Section 30.2 Other Washington State Leave Benefits

Employees are entitled to certain leave benefits under the Washington Extended Medical Leave Policy, the Washington Family Care Act, and the Washington Domestic Violence Leave Act. A summary of the requirements and benefits provided by these laws and what accrued PTO benefits employees can use during such leaves are set forth in the Employer's Employee Handbook.

Section 30.3 Military Leave

The Employer complies with the applicable provisions of the Uniform Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), the Washington Military Leave Act, and the Washington Military Spouse Leave Act with respect to an employee's right to leave for service in the uniformed services, reinstatement of employment after service, or any other rights or benefits provided by USERRA and Washington State law, subject to the employee complying with his/her obligations under USERRA and Washington State law. A summary of the requirements and benefits provided by USERRA and Washington State law are set forth in the Employer's Employee Handbook.

Section 30.4 Personal Leave of Absence

Upon written request by an employee who has completed their probationary period, the Employer in its sole discretion may grant such employee an unpaid leave of absence for personal reasons for a period of up to thirty (30) days. The Employer in its discretion may extend such personal leave for an additional thirty (30) days. Each request for personal leave of absence will be considered on an individual basis and must be submitted in writing and approved in advance by their supervisor and Department Head. Employees must first use all available accrued PTO before an unpaid personal leave of absence will be granted. Employees on an unpaid personal leave of absence will not gain, accrue, or be eligible for any benefits, including, but not limited to the accrual of any paid time off (PTO) or paid sick leave. Employees returning to work from a personal leave of absence will be returned to their former position if it has not been filled and is available, or they will be entitled to the first available open position for which the employee is qualified. A benefit eligible employee on an approved unpaid leave of absence for personal reasons must make arrangements with the Employer to pay for their continued medical insurance coverage under COBRA.

Section 30.5 Union Leave

A. Upon a minimum of thirty (30) days written request, the Employer in its discretion may grant an unpaid leave of absence to an employee who has completed a minimum of one (1) year of service to accept a full-time position with the Union for a period not to exceed six (6) months. The duration of such Union leave may be extended by mutual written agreement of the Employer and Union. Only one (1) employee may be on an unpaid Union leave at any one time. No compensation or benefits shall be paid to an employee for the duration of such Union leave, but their seniority shall continue to accrue. An employee returning to work from a Union leave will be returned to their former position if it has not been filled and is available, or they will be entitled to the first

available open position for which the employee is qualified. Such employee will receive any intervening wage increases as if they had been working. An employee must give the Employer a minimum of ten (10) days written notice that they would like to return to work from a Union leave. An employee on Union leave is responsible for maintaining any licenses.

B. The Employer will grant up to three (3) paid shifts per calendar year for employees to engage in public advocacy for quality long-term care, the details of which will be mutually agreed to by the Employer and Union. Based on its business needs, the Employer also will make a good faith effort to allow some employees to be off work on unpaid leave to attend one of the main public advocacy days designated by the Union.

Section 30.6 Failure to return to work after completion of an approved leave of absence will be considered a voluntary termination of employment. An employee who misrepresents any facts in obtaining a leave, or who obtains a leave on the basis of any misrepresentation, or who fails to report for work on the next workday following the end of an approved leave, will have their employment terminated.

Section 30.7 The Employer reserves the right to require a physician's statement certifying that an employee returning from leave is fit for duty and able to return to work without restrictions.

ARTICLE 31: BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

Section 31.1 Full-time and part-time employees are entitled to Bereavement Leave pursuant to the provisions in this Article. Paid Bereavement Leave will be paid at the employee's straight-time hourly rate of pay. Time off for any form of paid or unpaid Bereavement Leave will not be considered hours worked for purposes of computing overtime.

Section 31.2 In the event of the death of an immediate family member, full-time and parttime employees who have completed their probationary period may take up to three (3) consecutive scheduled days off with pay up to a maximum of twenty-four (24) hours of pay at their regular straight-time hourly rate for bereavement and/or to attend the funeral. Immediate family member includes only an employee's spouse, child, parent, brother, sister, parent-in-law, stepparent, stepchild, grandparent, grandchild, and domestic partner. With the Employer's approval, employees can take additional time off without pay and/or may use their available Paid Time Off (PTO).

Section 31.3 Unpaid Bereavement Leave for family members beyond the immediate family members listed in Section 2 above must be approved by the Employer.

Section 31.4 Employees must notify their immediate supervisor as soon as possible before taking any bereavement leave.

Section 31.5 The Employer may require employees requesting Bereavement Leave to provide proof of death and their relationship to the deceased, which can include a newspaper obituary notice, death certificate, coroner's report, or a signed, verified statement from a Funeral Director.

ARTICLE 32: SEVERABILITY AND SAVINGS CLAUSE

Section 32.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require either party to act contrary to any federal state, or local law, regulation, ordinance, governmental authority, or declaration. In the event any such condition arises, it is agreed that this Agreement shall be deemed to be modified in respect to either or both parties to the extent necessary to comply with the law, regulation, order, or declaration.

Section 32.2 The Parties are executing this Agreement with the belief that it is in conformity with all federal, state, and local laws and governmental rules and regulations. However, in the event that any provision in this Agreement should be held illegal, invalid, or unenforceable for any reason by a court or agency which has proper jurisdiction over the matter, said illegality or invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining provision(s) of this Agreement, and the provision held illegal or invalid shall be fully severable and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if said illegal or invalid provision had never

been included in this Agreement. The Parties will meet solely for the purpose of negotiating alternatives to any provision(s) that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, but the Union and Employer expressly agree that they are each giving up their respective rights to strike or lockout during any such negotiations, and instead, that all of the terms in Article 37 of this Agreement (No Strike/No Lockout) shall continue to remain in full force and effect at all times during the full term of this Agreement, including at all times during any such negotiations.

ARTICLE 33: SUCCESSORSHIP

Section 33.1 The terms of this Agreement shall be binding on the Employer and the Union and their respective successors and assigns.

Section 33.2 In the event of a sale, transfer, lease, or assignment of the entity that is the Employer of the bargaining unit employees, the Employer will notify the Union of that fact as soon as possible (subject to the restrictions of any non-disclosure agreements), but no later than the time required for legal notice to be given to the residents of the name and address of the new owner, assignee, lessee, or transferee.

ARTICLE 34: SCOPE & APPLICATION

Section 34.1 This Agreement constitutes the sole and entire existing agreement between the parties and completely and correctly expresses all of the rights and obligations of the parties. All prior agreements, conditions, past practices, customs, usages, and obligations are expressly and completely superseded and revoked insofar as any such prior agreement, condition, past practice, custom, usage, or obligation might have given rise to any enforceable right.

Section 34.2 The waiver in any particular instance or series of instances of any term or condition of this Agreement or any breach hereof by either party shall not constitute a waiver of such term or condition or of any breach thereof in any other instance.

Section 34.3 This Agreement may not be added to, subtracted from, altered, changed,

amended, or modified in any respect except by subsequent written agreement signed on behalf of the parties by their duly authorized officers or representatives.

Section 34.4 Time is of the essence in this Agreement. Any time period or time limit included in this Agreement has been carefully considered and represents the agreed absolute outside limit of time within which the applicable action or right must be exercised.

Section 34.5 As used in this Agreement, the term "employee" (singular or plural) refers only to employees in the bargaining unit. The words "he," "his," and "him," as used in this Agreement to denote employees are understood to include both male and female employees.

Section 34.6 This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with standard principles of contract interpretation, federal labor law, and the law of the State of Washington.

ARTICLE 35: NO STRIKE/NO LOCKOUT

Section 35.1 The Union agrees that during the term of this Agreement, neither the Union (including any officials, employees, or agents of the International or any local of the Union) nor any employees in the bargaining unit shall directly or indirectly cause, promote, authorize, encourage, support, sanction, or take part in any strike, sympathy strike, work stoppage, walk-out, sick-out, picketing, strike-related hand-billing, patrolling, refusal to work, sabotage, slow-down, or any other intentional interruption or interference of any kind with any work or operations of the Employer for any reason. Neither the Union nor the employees shall resort to any subterfuge or otherwise remain away from duty or make themselves unavailable for work for any reason to evade their obligations under this Agreement.

Section 35.2 In the event there is any breach or violation of this Article by the Union or any employee(s), the Employer is not required to resort to the grievance and arbitration procedure in this Agreement, but may pursue any legal remedy in any forum.

Section 35.3 In the event the Employer learns of any activity prohibited in Section 1 above

that is imminent or occurring, the Employer's representative will contact the President or Secretary-Treasurer of the Union in order to afford the Union the opportunity to inform its members of the requirements of this Article and the law. If there is any interference with the normal operations of the Employer's business during the term of this Agreement in violation of Section 1 above, the Union and its representatives will take whatever steps are reasonably necessary to resolve the improper job action including, but not limited to, posting a notice advising bargaining unit employees that any interference with the Employer's operations is prohibited by this Article and speaking with membership to ask them to return to work.

Section 35.4 The Employer shall have the absolute right, in its sole discretion, to take any disciplinary action the Employer deems appropriate, up to and including discharge, against any employee who violates this Article, or who otherwise participates in, aides, abets, or encourages others to participate in any of the actions prohibited in Section 1 of this Article. The grievance and arbitration procedure in this Agreement may be invoked by such disciplined or discharged employee only as to the question of whether said employee participated in a strike or any other action prohibited by this Article. If an Arbitrator finds that an employee participated in a strike or any other action prohibited by the Article by this Article, the Arbitrator shall have no authority to change or modify the discipline or discharge penalty imposed by the Employer.

Section 35.5 The Employer agrees that there shall be no lockout of bargaining unit employees during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 36: EFFECTIVE DATES AND DURATION

Section 36.1 This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of ratification of this Agreement and shall remain be in full force and effect through July 31, 2025.

Section 36.2 The Employer and Union agree to jointly enter discussions for a renewal of this Agreement no later than the ninetieth (90) day immediately preceding the termination.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Union and the Employer have executed this Agreement this

day of August 2, 2022.

For SEIU 775	For (Employer)
Adam Glickman, Secretary Treasurer	William Miller, VP of Operations
Date	Date